
CITY OF TONGANOXIE 
321 S. DELAWARE 913-845-2620 

April 16, 2018 
7:00 Regular Meeting 

 
*Note – This meeting may be transmitted via Facebook Live on the City of Tonganoxie page 

 
Honorable Jason K. Ward, Mayor 

Council Members 
Rocky Himpel               Curtis Oroke            Kara Reed           Loralee Stevens 

 
Open Regular Meeting – 7:00 p.m. 
 
Administration of Oath of Office to fill City Council Vacancy – David Bennett 
 
I. Pledge of Allegiance  

    
II. Approval of Minutes – Regular meeting dated April 2, 2018 

 
III. Consent Agenda 

 
a) Review bill payments 

 

IV. Open Agenda 
 
Members of the public are welcome to use this time to comment about any matter relating to City 
business. The comments that are discussed under Open Agenda may or may not be acted upon by the 
Council during this meeting. In order to speak during open agenda, you must sign up with your name 
and address with the city clerk or designee before the meeting.  Comments will be limited to 3 
minutes.  Please wait to be recognized by the Mayor and state your name and address for the record. 

    
V. Old Business 

 
VI. New Business 

 
a) Ordinance 1437: Addition of Chapter XV, Article 7, Entitled Storm Water Management Program and 

Utility to the Tonganoxie City Code 
 

b) Resolution 04-18-04: Establishing the Flat Storm Water Utility Fees for Residential and Non-
Residential Property  

 
c) Ordinance 1438: Repealing Ordinance 1433 (Voluntary Annexation) 
 
d) Resolution 04-18-05: Approving First Amendment to Antenna Site Lease at South Water Tower with 

T-Mobile Central LLC 
 

e) Resolution 04-18-06: Authorizing Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages at Tonganoxie Days 2018 
 
f) Resolution 04-18-07: Authorizing Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages at Tonganoxie Public Library 

monthly artist sessions in 2018 
 

g) Request for Approval of Lease Agreement with Tongie Tidal Waves for 2018 Pool Season 
 
h) Request for Award of Bid and Authorizing Agreement for Repairs to City Hall Roof 

 
i) City Manager Agenda 

1. Update on interagency discussions with Leavenworth County 
2. Business Park Development Update 
3. March Financial Report 



4. Quarterly Treasurer’s Report – Q1 2018 
 

j) City Attorney Agenda 
 

k) Mayor Pro Tem Agenda 
 

l) City Council Agenda 
 

m) Mayor Agenda 
1. Executive session for the preliminary discussion of the acquisition of real property 

 

VII. Information & Communications (No Action Required) 
 

VIII. Adjourn 



Minutes - Page 1 of 4 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DRAFT MINUTES 
April 2, 2018 

7:00 p.m. Regular Meeting 

I. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

• Mayor Ward opened the meeting at 7:00 p.m.
• Roll Call: Council members present were Mayor Ward, Mr. Himpel, Ms. Reed, Ms. Stevens, and Mr. Oroke. City

Manager George Brajkovic, Assistant City Manager Dan Porter, and City Attorney Shannon Marcano were also in
attendance.

• Mayor Ward led the Pledge of Allegiance.

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING DATED MARCH 19, 2018 AND SPECIAL MEETING DATED MARCH

24, 2018 

o Ms. Reed made a motion to approve the minutes from the March 19, 2018 and March 24, 2018 City Council
meetings.

o Mr. Oroke Seconded.
o Vote of all ayes, motion carried.

III. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA

a) REVIEW BILL PAYMENTS

o Mr. Himpel made a motion to approve the consent agenda.
o Ms. Stevens Seconded.
o Vote of all ayes, motion carried.

IV. OPEN AGENDA

• No members of the public signed up to address the City Council in open agenda.
• Mayor Ward closed the open agenda portion of the agenda.

V. OLD BUSINESS 

a) REQUEST FOR AUTHORIZATION TO END PARTICIPATION IN DOWNTOWN REVOLVING LOAN PROGRAM GRANT 
WITH THE KANSAS DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

• Mr. Brajkovic introduced the item and explained that it had been presented to City Council at the March 26
continuation of the March 19 meeting. He also noted the staff recommendation.

• Mr. Porter noted that the state requested a response from the City Council by April 6 indicating the Council’s
decision on the direction of the program.

• Ms. Stevens noted that other assistance methods are now available that weren’t at the time of the activity
within this program and that the conditions placed on the program have changed significantly to the point that
it would place a large burden on staff.



Minutes - Page 2 of 4 

o Ms. Reed made a motion to motion to authorize the Mayor to execute a letter to the Kansas Department of
Commerce indicating the City’s decision to return the entirety of the remaining funds associated with Grant
99-CP-002.

o Mr. Himpel Seconded.
• Mayor Ward asked whether the caveat would be given in the letter that the City would cease to act as the loan

administrator for the current loan.
• Mr. Porter noted that this would be negotiated with the Kansas Department of Commerce based on Council’s

preference.
o Ms. Reed amended her motion to include a caveat in the letter that the City would ask to not continue to

collect and remit payments for the existing loan with a local business.
o Vote of all ayes, motion carried.

VI. NEW BUSINESS

a) RESOLUTION 04-18-01: AUTHORIZING ENGAGEMENT LETTER WITH LOCAL LAW, LLC

• Mr. Brajkovic explained the item acts as a summary of the scope of services and noted that the letter of
engagement was prepared and delivered by Shannon Marcano.

o Mr. Himpel made a motion to adopt Resolution 04-18-01, authorizing the Mayor to execute an engagement
letter with Local Law LLC.

o Mr. Oroke Seconded.
o Vote of all ayes, motion carried.

b) RESOLUTION 04-18-02: APPOINTING MUNICIPAL COURT JUDGE AND CITY ATTORNEY

• Mr. Brajkovic introduced the item and described the item as formalizing the appointment of the Municipal Court
Judge and City Attorney.

o Mr. Oroke made a motion to adopt Resolution 04-18-02, authorizing the appointment of Municipal Court
Judge and City Attorney.

o Ms. Stevens Seconded.
o Vote of all ayes, motion carried.

c) RESOLUTION  04-18-03: APPROVING REAL ESTATE CONTRACT OF SALE OF FORMER CITY GARAGE FACILITY

• Mr. Brajkovic described the publication of availability of the property and the submittal review and evaluation
process. He presented the staff recommendation to move forward with a proposal submitted by Robbins
Acquisitions Inc. He also outlined the elements of the real estate contract of sale.

• Mayor Ward asked about the relative size of the two partitions of the building and the zoning designation.
• Mr. Brajkovic described the relative size of the two sections of the building as approximately split 60/40 and

stated that he believed the zoning was general business district.
o Mr. Himpel made a motion to adopt Resolution 04-18-03, authorizing the execution of the real estate contract

of sale for the former city garage facility with Robbins Acquisition.
o Ms. Reed Seconded.
o Vote of all ayes, motion carried.

d) ORDINANCE 1436: VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION OF REAL PROPERTY



Minutes - Page 3 of 4

• Mr. Brajkovic introduced the item.
• Mr. Porter noted that this property was previously part of an annexation ordinance but that further

conversations with the County brought to light that the certificate of survey process was not completed by the
applicant prior to the voluntary annexation. The County process has now been completed.

• Ms. Marcano noted that the next meeting will include an ordinance to repeal the earlier adopted ordinance.
• Mr. Porter noted that the April 5 Planning Commission meeting agenda does include several items related to the

property being annexed and the timeline of this annexation would result in the annexation being completed
prior to any consideration of items related to the project by the City Council.

o Mr. Himpel made a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 1436, approving the voluntary annexation of real
property.

o Mr. Oroke Seconded.
o Vote of all ayes, motion carried.

e) CITY COUNCIL VACANCY APPLICATIONS REVIEW

• Mr. Brajkovic explained the process developed upon review of the legal procedures to fill the current City
Council vacancies. Two applications were received by City staff but the governing body can nominate anyone for
the position.

• Michael (Andy) Pierson, who had submitted an application, spoke before the Council and discussed his interest
in the vacant position.

o Mr. Oroke made a motion to appoint Dave Bennett to fill the current City Council vacancy.
o Mr. Himpel Seconded.
• Mr. Himpel requested a roll call vote be taken.
o Roll Call Vote –   Aye: Himpel, Stevens, Oroke    Nay: Reed, Ward
o Vote of 3-2, motion carried.
• Mr. Brajkovic clarified that the next Council meeting will include the oath of office being administered at the

beginning of the meeting.
• Ms. Marcano noted that the appointments approved earlier in the meeting by resolution serve as the

formalization of the action.

f) CITY MANAGER AGENDA

• No items.

g) CITY ATTORNEY AGENDA

• No items.

h) MAYOR AGENDA

1. EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE PRELIMINARY DISCUSSION OF THE ACQUISITION OF REAL PROPERTY

(Items i and j were completed prior to item h) 
o Mr. Himpel made a motion to recess the City Council into executive session to discuss property acquisition

pursuant to the preliminary discussion of the acquisition of real property exception, K.S.A. 75-4319 (b) (6) at 
7:51 p.m. The open meeting will resume in the City Council chambers after 25 minutes. The executive session 
will include the City Attorney, City Manager, Assistant City Manager, and City Council. 



Minutes - Page 4 of 4 

o Ms. Reed seconded the motion.
o Vote of all ayes, motion carried.

… 
o Ms. Reed made a motion to return from executive session at 8:16 p.m., noting that no action was taken

during the executive session.  
o Mr. Oroke seconded the motion.
o Vote of all ayes, motion carried.

i) MAYOR PRO TEM AGENDA

• No items.

j) CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

• Mr. Himpel noted the recent increase in animal control requests and raised the question of how to improve
animal control services offered by the City.

• Mr. Brajkovic described the current approach to animal control and resources available to the public.
• Mr. Himpel asked if the resources available online can be updated to make the information more readily

available to the public.
• Mr. Brajkovic stated that staff will update the information online.
• Monica Gee, 17685 214th Street, reminded the City Council of the upcoming rabies vaccination and microchip

event to be held on April 14 in Chieftain Park and how the microchip is being used as a registration element for
some cities.

• Ms. Stevens introduced the idea to potentially partner with the Tonganoxie Business Association to add a bicycle
repair station to a community location like a pocket park. She described the contents of a typical station.

• Elizabeth Mullins, 20077 199th Street, introduced herself to the City Council and commented that she is the
County representative on the Northeast Kansas Library System Board (NEKLS).

VII. INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATIONS (NO ACTION REQUIRED)

VIII. ADJOURN

o Mr. Himpel made a motion to adjourn the meeting.
o Ms. Reed seconded the motion.
o Vote of all ayes, motion carried.
o Meeting adjourned at 8:18 p.m.

Respectfully submitted, 

Dan Porter, Assistant City Manager 



4/10/2018 12:17:40 PM Page 1 of 2

My Check Report
City of Tonganoxie, KS By Check Number

Date Range: 03/30/2018 - 04/10/2018

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Amount NumberPayment TypePayment Date Discount Amount

Bank Code: AP Bank-AP Bank

0001 911 CUSTOM 04/10/2018 4469175.00Regular 0.00

0025 APAC-KANSAS, INC 04/10/2018 44692415.38Regular 0.00

0034 AT&T ACCESS TRANSPORT SERVICES 04/10/2018 4469374.49Regular 0.00

0038 B & W FIRE LLC 04/10/2018 44694761.70Regular 0.00

0041 BARCO MUNICIPAL PRODUCTS INC 04/10/2018 44695548.00Regular 0.00

0051 BG CONSULTANTS INC 04/10/2018 4469613,453.00Regular 0.00

0886 CREATIVE PRODUCT SOURCE, INC. 04/10/2018 44697118.95Regular 0.00

0136 DELTA DENTAL PLAN OF KANSAS,IN 04/10/2018 446982,105.06Regular 0.00

0192 FOLEY INDUSTRIES 04/10/2018 4469924.09Regular 0.00

0250 HONEYCREEK DISPOSAL SERVICE 04/10/2018 4470025,886.18Regular 0.00

0330 KANSAS GAS SERVICE 04/10/2018 44701220.83Regular 0.00

0335 KANSAS MUNICIPAL JUDGES ASSOC. 04/10/2018 4470225.00Regular 0.00

0373 KS HEALTH & ENVIROMENT LAB 04/10/2018 44703348.00Regular 0.00

0397 LEAGUE OF KANSAS MUNICIPALITIE 04/10/2018 44704100.00Regular 0.00

0914 LOCAL LAW, LLC. 04/10/2018 447057,870.00Regular 0.00

0772 LV CO PORT AUTHORITY 04/10/2018 4470610.00Regular 0.00

0429 MARC 04/10/2018 447071,800.00Regular 0.00

0857 MIDCONTINENT COMMUNICATIONS 04/10/2018 44708268.34Regular 0.00

0888 NATIONWIDE 04/10/2018 44709100.00Regular 0.00

0477 NAVRATS 04/10/2018 44710276.98Regular 0.00

0479 NEW DIRECTIONS BEHAVIORAL HEAL 04/10/2018 44711232.29Regular 0.00

0491 OLATHE WINWATER WORKS 04/10/2018 44712631.50Regular 0.00

0495 OMNI-SITE 04/10/2018 44713215.51Regular 0.00

0496 ONE CALL CONCEPTS 04/10/2018 44714128.40Regular 0.00

0500 OREILLY AUTO PARTS 04/10/2018 44715301.78Regular 0.00

0536 PUBLIC AGENCY TRAINING COUNCIL 04/10/2018 44716450.00Regular 0.00

0562 S & S AUTOMOTIVE 04/10/2018 44717420.00Regular 0.00

0579 SECURITY BENEFIT - 457 04/10/2018 447182,181.92Regular 0.00

0581 SHILLING ELECTRIC CO. 04/10/2018 44719175.00Regular 0.00

0594 SMITHEREEN PEST CONTROL 04/10/2018 44720198.00Regular 0.00

0614 T-MOBILE 04/10/2018 44721535.25Regular 0.00

0628 TODD'S TIRE LLC 04/10/2018 4472222.00Regular 0.00

0641 TYLER TECHNOLOGIES 04/10/2018 4472323,256.00Regular 0.00

0642 U S POSTAL SERVICE 04/10/2018 447241,082.88Regular 0.00

0651 USA BLUE BOOK 04/10/2018 44725507.76Regular 0.00

Regular Checks

Manual Checks

Voided Checks

Discount

Payment
CountPayment Type

Bank Code AP Bank Summary

Bank Drafts

EFT's

35

0

0

0

0

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

35 0.00

Payment

84,819.29

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

84,819.29

Payable
Count

41

0

0

0

0

41



My Check Report Date Range: 03/30/2018 - 04/10/2018

Page 2 of 24/10/2018 12:17:40 PM

All Bank Codes Check Summary

Payment Type Discount
Payment

Count Payment
Payable

Count

Regular Checks

Manual Checks

Voided Checks

Bank Drafts

EFT's

35

0

0

0

0

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

35 0.00

84,819.29

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

84,819.29

41

0

0

0

0

41

Fund Name AmountPeriod

Fund Summary

998 Gen Fund-Pooled Cash 84,819.294/2018

84,819.29



City of Tonganoxie www.tonganoxie.org (913) 845-2620 
  

 
Office of the City Manager 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 

DATE:  April 16, 2018 

TO:  Honorable Mayor Jason K. Ward and Members of the City Council 

FROM:   Dan Porter, Assistant City Manager 

SUBJECT:  Ordinance No. 1437: Addition of Chapter XV, Article 7, Entitled Storm Water Management 
Program and Utility to the Tonganoxie City Code 

 
DISCUSSION: 
The 2018 Annual Budget approved by the City Council in 2017 included newly identified funding for the 
maintenance of storm water infrastructure, which resulted in the subsequent need for the creation of a utility. 
The 2018 Adopted Budget included $40,000 in revenue from monthly fees of $1.50 for residential and $3.00 for 
commercial water customers, with the opportunity to re-examine the rate structure in future years.  
 
Charter Ordinance No. 28 was presented to City Council as an initial step in the process of creating a Storm 
Water Management Utility in the City of Tonganoxie on January 22, 2018. The Charter Ordinance allowed the 
City to set up the Storm Water Management Utility, which is a prerequisite to applying the fees to customers. 
Following approval, the Charter Ordinance was published for two consecutive weeks in the City’s official 
newspaper (January 31 & February 7) and it went into effect 61 days after the final publication (April 8). A 
referendum petition was not filed, in which case the Charter Ordinance would have required approval by the 
majority of voters to become effectiveg.  
 
Ordinance No. 1437 amends the Tonganoxie City Code to add Chapter XV, Article 7, which includes an outline 
of the City’s storm water management program and utility. The outline includes clear definitions of terms, a 
statement of policy governing the utility, formal establishment of the storm water management program and 
utility, administrative powers for staff to execute activities within the utility, and information regarding the Storm 
Water Utility Fee and its application to various types of property within the City of Tonganoxie.  A complete 
copy of the contents of Chapter XV, Article 7 is included in the attached Ordinance No. 1437.  
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
Approval of Ordinance No. 1437 will take another step towards initiating collection of revenues budgeted in the 
newly-created Storm Water Fund in 2018. The budget in this fund for 2018 is aimed at establishing a level of 
fund balance with inaugural revenue collections, which are authorized to begin soon after approval of this 
Ordinance the related Resolution 04-18-04.   
 
ACTION NEEDED: 
Make a motion to approve Ordinance No. 1437. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Ordinance No. 1437 
 
 
cc:  George Brajkovic, City Manager 

Shannon Marcano, City Attorney    



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 1437    

 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AMENDING THE TONGANOXIE CITY CODE WITH 

THE ADDITION OF CHAPTER XV, ARTICLE 7, ENTITLED STORM WATER 

MANAGEMENT PROGRAM AND UTILITY. 

 

 WHEREAS, the Governing Body of the City of Tonganoxie, Kansas, wishes to create a 

Storm Water Utility for the City of Tonganoxie, Kansas.   

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 

OF TONGANOXIE, KANSAS: 

 

Section 1.  That the Tonganoxie City Code be amended with the addition of Chapter XV, Article 

7, which reads as follows: 

 

CHAPTER XV.  UTILITIES 

ARTICLE 7. STORM WATER MANAGEMENT PROGRAM AND UTILITY  

15-701. Definitions. For the purposes of this Article, the following words and phrases shall have 

the meanings indicated:  

(a) Billing Period means the service period identified on the utility bill. Each account shall be 

billed monthly in arrears of the service period. A developed property that receives a City of 

Tonganoxie water or sewer utility service shall be billed monthly in arrears of the service.  

(b) City Manager means the City Manager for the Tonganoxie, Kansas or his or her designee.  

(c) Customer means anyone receiving and being billed for utility services from the City.  

(d) Developed Property means real property which has been altered from its natural state by the 

addition of any improvements such as buildings, structures, or other impervious area.  

(e) Dwelling Unit means a singular unit or apartment providing complete, independent living 

facilities for one or more persons including provisions for living, sleeping, eating, cooking, and 

sanitation.  

(f) Exempt Property means public rights of way, public streets, public alleys, and public 

sidewalks, as well as any property that the Governing Body classifies as exempt.  



City of Tonganoxie www.tonganoxie.org (913) 845-2620 
  

 
Office of the City Manager 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 

DATE:  April 16, 2018 

TO:  Honorable Mayor Jason K. Ward and Members of the City Council 

FROM:   Dan Porter, Assistant City Manager 

SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 04-18-04: Establishing the Flat Storm Water Utility Fees for Residential and 
Non-Residential Property       

 
DISCUSSION: 
This item is directly related to Ordinance No. 1437, which amended the Tonganoxie City Code to add Chapter 
XV, Article 7. This outline of the City’s storm water management program and utility included clear definitions 
of terms, a statement of policy governing the utility, formal establishment of the storm water management 
program and utility, administrative powers for staff to execute activities within the utility, and information 
regarding the Storm Water Utility Fee and its application to various types of property within the City of 
Tonganoxie.   
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
See agenda item VI. a).  
 
ACTION NEEDED: 
Make a motion to approve Resolution 04-18-04, establishing the Flat Storm Water Utility Fees for Residential 
and Non-Residential Property. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 04-18-04 
 
 
cc:  George Brajkovic, City Manager 

Shannon Marcano, City Attorney    



1 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 04-18-04 

 

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE FLAT STORM WATER UTILITY FEES 

FOR RESIDENTIAL AND NON-RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY       

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Code of the City of Tonganoxie at Chapter XV, Article 7, 

the City Council has the authority to establish the Flat Storm Water Utility Fee for 

Residential Property and the Flat Storm Water Utility Fee for Non-Residential Property. 

   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE 

CITY OF TONGANOXIE, KANSAS: 

 

Section 1.  That the monthly Flat Storm Water Utility Fee for Residential Property is 

established at $1.50, as defined in the Tonganoxie City Code Section 15-706.   

 

Section 2.  That the monthly Flat Storm Water Utility Fee for Commercial Property is 

established at $3.00, as defined in the Tonganoxie City Code Section 15-706. 

 

Section 3.  That this resolution shall become effective upon passage.   

 

 

ADOPTED by the Governing Body this 16
th

 day of April, 2018. 

   

SIGNED by the Mayor this 16
th

 day of April, 2018.   

 

 

SEAL 

 

       ______________________________ 

                  Jason K. Ward, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________________ 

Patricia C. Hagg, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

_________________________________ 

 Shannon M. Marcano, City Attorney  

 

 

 

 

 



2 
 

(g) Fee or Storm Water Utility Fee means the charge established under this ordinance to be billed 

to customers/owners to fund the costs of Storm Water Management Program and of operating, 

maintaining, and improving the Storm Water system in the City.  

(h) Fiscal Year means the twelve-month period commencing on the first day of January of any 

year.  

(i) Governing Body means the Mayor and elected City Council members as set out in Chapter I 

of the Code of the City of Tonganoxie, KS.  

(j) Impervious Area means the number of square feet of hard surfaced areas which either prevent 

or retard the entry of water into soil mantle, as it entered under natural conditions as 

Undeveloped Property, and/or causes water to run off the surface in greater quantities or at an 

increased rate of flow from that present under natural conditions as Undeveloped Property, 

including, but not limited to, roofs, sidewalks, patios, most conventionally surfaced streets, 

pavement, driveways, parking lots, athletic courts and any other oiled, graveled, or compacted 

surface.  

(k) Non-Residential Property means any property that is designated by the Utility Billing System 

as non-residential.  

(l) Property Owner means the property owner of record as listed in the County Assessment Roll. 

A property owner includes any individual, corporation, firm, partnership, or group of individuals 

acting as a unit, and any trustee, receiver, or personal representative.  

(m) Residential Property means any property designated by the Utility Billing System as 

residential.  

(n) Storm Water Management Fund or Fund means the enterprise Fund created by this ordinance 

to operate, maintain, and improve the City's Storm Water system and for such other purposes as 

stated in this Ordinance.   

(o) Storm Water Management Program means the planning, design, construction, regulation and 

enforcement, improvement, repair, maintenance, control measures, public education, citizen 

participation, and operation of facilities and programs relating to water, flood plains, flood 

control, grading erosion, tree conservation, and sediment control.  

(p) Storm Water System means the system or network of storm and surface water management 

facilities including but not limited to inlets, conduits, manholes, channels, ditches on City 

property, drainage easements, City owned retention and detention basin, infiltration facilities and 

other components.  

(q) Undeveloped Property means real property that has not been altered from its natural state by 

dredging, filling, removal of trees and vegetation, or other activities which have disturbed or 

altered the topography or soils on the property.  

(r) Utility Billing System means the system utilized by the City of Tonganoxie to create a 

periodic utility bill and any or all upgrades or modifications to that system.  



3 
 

(s) Storm Water Utility Fee System means the utility created by this ordinance for the purpose of 

implementing and funding the Storm Water Management Program.  

(t) Water means any Storm Water, surface water, snow melt or ground water.  

(u) Vacant Improved Property means unoccupied developed property that contains impervious 

area  

15-702. Findings and Statements of Policy.  

(a) The City maintains a system of storm and surface water management facilities including, but 

not limited to, inlets, conduits, manholes, channels, ditches, drainage easements, City owned 

retention and detention basins, infiltration facilities, and other components. The Storm Water 

system in the City needs regular maintenance and improvements.  

(b) All developed property in the City either uses or benefits from the maintenance of the Storm 

Water system. The extent of use of the Storm Water system by each property is dependent on 

factors that influence runoff, including land use and the amount of impervious surface on the 

property.  

(c) The costs of improving, maintaining, operating, and monitoring the Storm Water system 

should be allocated, to the extent practicable, to all developed properties based on the impact of 

runoff from the impervious areas of the property on the Storm Water management system.  

(d) Management of the Storm Water system to protect the public health, safety, and welfare 

requires adequate revenues and it is in the interest of the public to finance Storm Water 

management adequately with a user fee system that is reasonable and equitable so that each user 

of the system pays to the extent to which the user contributes to the need for it. The City is 

responsible for the provision of a planned and orderly system for managing and mitigating the 

effects of development on Storm Water and appropriate balancing between development and 

preservation of the natural environment. To accomplish these ends, the City desires to create a 

Storm Water Management Program and Storm Water Utility pursuant to Charter Ordinance No. 

28.  

(e) The Storm Water Management Program will also initiate innovative and proactive 

approaches to Storm Water management within the City to address problems in areas of the City 

that currently are prone to flooding, protect against replication of these types of problems and the 

creation of similar problems in newly developing areas of the City, and assist in meeting the 

mandates of the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System as created by the Federal 

Clean Water Act and associated State and federal laws and their supporting regulations.  

(f) The Storm Water Utility Fee imposed by this ordinance is neither a tax nor a special 

assessment, but a charge (in the nature of tolls, fees or rents) for services rendered or available.  

15-703. Establishment of Storm Water Management Program and Storm Water Utility. Pursuant 

to the City Charter Ordinance No. 28, the City’s general home rule authority, its nuisance 

abatement authority, its police powers and all other authority, the Governing Body does hereby 



4 
 

establish both a Storm Water Management Program and a Storm Water Utility and hereby 

declares its intention to operate the same.  

15-704. Administration of the Storm Water Management Program; the Storm Water Utility. The 

City Manager, not in contravention of any City Ordinance, resolution or regulation, shall have 

the power to undertake the following activities to administer the Storm Water Management 

Program: (a) To advise the Governing Body on matters relating to the Storm Water Management 

Program and to make recommendations to the Governing Body concerning the adoption of 

ordinances, resolutions, policies and regulations in furtherance of the objectives of the Storm 

Water Management Program. (b) The acquisition by gift, purchase or eminent domain of real and 

personal property, easements thereon and/or interests therein, necessary to construct, operate, 

and maintain Storm Water control facilities. (c) To undertake the engineering and design, debt 

service and related financing expenses, construction costs for new facilities, and enlargement or 

improvement of existing facilities, operation and maintenance of the Storm Water system. (d) 

Regulate, establish standards, review and inspect land use or property owner activities when such 

activities have the potential to affect the quantity, timing, velocity, erosive forces, quality, 

environmental value or other characteristics of Storm Water which would flow into the Storm 

Water Management System or in any way effect the implementation of the Storm Water 

Management Program. (e) Monitoring, surveillance, and inspection of Storm Water control 

devices. (f) Water quality monitoring and water quality programs. (g) Retrofitting developed 

areas for pollution control. (h) Inspection and enforcement activities. (i) Analyze the cost of 

services and benefits provided by the Storm Water Utility and the structure of fees, service 

charges, credits, and other revenues on a regular basis and make recommendations to the 

Governing Body regarding the same. (j) To undertake expenditures as required to implement 

these activities, including costs of Capital Improvements, Operations and Maintenance and other 

costs as may be required. (k) Other activities which are reasonably required.    

15-705. Classification of Property for Purposes of Determination of the Storm Water Utility Fee. 

For purposes of determining the Storm Water Utility Fee, all properties in the City are classified 

into one of the following classes:  

(a) Residential property. (1) Residential Fee. The Council has determined that a flat Storm Water 

Utility Fee shall be charged against all Residential Properties classified as a dwelling unit. The 

Council reserves the right to amend or adjust this Storm Water Utility fee or to establish a 

formula for calculating the Storm Water Utility fees at any time.  

(b) Non-Residential Property. (1) Non-Residential Property Fee. The Council has determined 

that a flat Storm Water Utility Fee shall be charged against all Non-Residential Properties. The 

Council reserves the right to amend or adjust this Storm Water Utility fee or to establish a 

formula for calculating the Storm Water Utility fees at any time.  

(c) Vacant Improved Property. (1) Vacant Improved Property Fee. The Storm Water Utility fee 

for vacant improved property shall be the same as the fee applied to property if it were occupied. 

The Storm Water Utility fee shall be assessed to the owner of record according to the billing 

procedures provided for in Section 15-708.  



5 
 

(d) Undeveloped Property. (1) Undeveloped Property Fee. There shall be no fee for undeveloped 

property.  

(e) Exempt Property. (1) Exempt Property Fee. There shall be no fee for undeveloped and 

exempt property.  

15-706. Storm Water Utility Fee. Effective April 30, 2018, a monthly service charge is imposed 

upon all developed property in the City to fund Storm Water management programs. Thereafter, 

the monthly service charge shall be calculated annually on January 1 and assessed monthly 

during the following 12 month period. This service charge shall be known as the Storm Water 

Utility Fee ("Fee"). The fee shall be calculated to insure adequate revenues to fund the costs of 

the Storm Water Management Program and to provide for the operation, maintenance, and 

capital improvements of the Storm Water system in the City. The City Manager shall make an 

annual recommendation to the Governing Body as to the monthly charge necessary to fulfill the 

proposed purpose of the Storm Water Management Program. The fees shall be as approved by 

the City Council.  

15-707. Charges for Tax-Exempt Properties. The Governing Body finds that all real property in 

the City contributes to runoff and either uses or benefits from the maintenance of the Storm 

Water system. Therefore, except as otherwise provided in Section 15-705 all developed property 

in the City, including property that is tax exempt from property tax shall be charged the Storm 

Water Utility Fee. Chapter XVI. Utilities   

15-708. When Storm Water Utility Fee Payable; Interest and Penalties; Lien on Real Property; 

Abatement of Small Amounts Due. The Storm Water utility fee shall become part of the monthly 

utility bill sent to utility customers to be paid in accordance with Sections 15-110:106 and/or if 

the fee is not paid within the 30-day period following the date of the utility bill, the cost shall be 

collected in the manner provided by K.S.A. 12-1,115, and amendments thereto, or shall be 

assessed as special assessments against the lot or parcel of land from which the bill is due, and 

the City Clerk, at the time of certification of other City taxes, shall certify the costs and the 

County Clerk shall extend the same on the tax rolls of the County against such lot or parcel of 

land and it shall be collected by the County Treasurer and paid to the City as other City taxes are 

collected and paid. The City may pursue collection both by levy of a special assessment and in 

the manner provided by K.S.A. 12-1,115, and amendments thereto, but only until the full cost 

and applicable interest are paid in full. Any account that is inactive in the Utility Billing System 

shall not be charged for the Storm Water utility fee until the account becomes activated.  

15-709. Requests for Appeal or Correction of the Storm Water Management Fee. A 

customer/owner may request an appeal or correction of the Fee by submitting the request in 

writing to the City Manager within thirty (30) days after the date of the contested bill. Grounds 

for appeal or correction of the Fee include: (a) Incorrect classification of the property for 

purposes of determining the Fee; (b) Errors in the identification of the property subject to the 

Fee. The City Manager shall make a determination within thirty (30) days after receipt of the 

customer/owner's completed written request for appeal or correction of the Fee. The City 

Manager's decision on a request for appeal or correction of the Fee shall be final. A 



6 
 

customer/owner must comply with all rules and procedures adopted by the City when submitting 

a request for appeal or correction of the Fee and must provide all information necessary for the 

City Manager to make a determination on a request for correction of the Fee. The burden of 

proof shall be on the customer/owner to demonstrate, by clear and convincing evidence, that the 

determination of the City Manager, from which the appeal is being taken, is erroneous. The City 

Manager shall notify the customer/owner in writing of the decision. Failure to comply with the 

provisions of this Subsection shall be grounds for denial of the request. The filing of a notice of 

appeal shall not stay the imposition or duty to pay the fee. If the City Manager determines that 

the fee should not be paid or the amount is less than the amount appealed, the City shall issue a 

refund in the appropriate amount to the customer/owner. All refunds shall be without interest.  

 

Section 2.  That this ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its publication in 

the official newspaper of the City of Tonganoxie, Kansas, as provided by law. 

 

PASSED by the City Council this 16
th

 day of April, 2018. 

APPROVED by the Mayor this 16
th

 day of April, 2018.   

SEAL 

       ______________________________ 

                 Jason K. Ward, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________ 

Patricia C. Hagg, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

_________________________________ 

Shannon M. Marcano, City Attorney  

 



City of Tonganoxie www.tonganoxie.org (913) 845-2620 
  

 
Office of the City Manager 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 
DATE:  April 16, 2018 
TO:  Honorable Mayor Jason K. Ward and Members of the City Council 
FROM:   Dan Porter, Assistant City Manager 

SUBJECT:  Ordinance No. 1438; repealing Ordinance No. 1433 

 
DISCUSSION: 
Through communications with Leavenworth County following the passage of Ordinance No. 1433 on January 
22, 2018, City staff determined that the legal description included in the Ordinance was incorrect and that a 
County process was required to occur prior to the annexation of approximately of 1.3 acres of land connected 
to the City limits boundary. The applicant completed said process and resubmitted the annexation petition, 
which was annexed into the City of Tonganoxie with Ordinance No. 1436 on April 2, 2018.  
 
The action proscribed with Ordinance No. 1438 is repealing Ordinance No. 1433, which contained the incorrect 
legal description, and effectively completes the final element of the annexation effort for the property.  
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
None.  
 
ACTION NEEDED: 
Make a motion to approve Ordinance No. 1438, repealing Ordinance No. 1433.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Ordinance No. 1438 
 
 
cc:  George Brajkovic, City Manager 

Shannon Marcano, City Attorney    



1 
 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 1438 

 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 1433 ANNEXING CERTAIN 

PROPERTY TO THE CITY OF TONGANOXIE, KANSAS  

 

WHEREAS, the City desires to repeal Ordinance 1433 annexing certain property to the 

City of Tonganoxie, Kansas, which Ordinance contained an incorrect legal description and was 

not effective as to the annexation.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 

OF TONGANOXIE, KANSAS: 

 

Section 1. That Ordinance No. 1433 is hereby repealed.   

Section 2.  That this ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its publication in 

the official newspaper of the City of Tonganoxie, Kansas as provided by law. 

 

PASSED by the City Council this 16
th

 day of April, 2018. 

APPROVED by the Mayor this 16
th

 day of April, 2018.   

SEAL 

       ______________________________ 

                 Jason K. Ward, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________ 

Patricia C. Hagg, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

_________________________________ 

Shannon M. Marcano, City Attorney  



City of Tonganoxie www.tonganoxie.org (913) 845-2620 

Office of the City Manager 
AGENDA STATEMENT

DATE: April 16, 2018 

TO: Honorable Mayor Jason K. Ward and Members of the City Council 

FROM: Dan Porter, Assistant City Manager 

SUBJECT: First Amendment to Antenna Site Lease at the South Water Tower 

DISCUSSION: 
The City made an agreement in 2007 with T-Mobile Central LLC, a Delaware Limited Liability Company, for a 5 
year lease of space for nine cellular antennas on the City’s South Water Tower located at 801 E 12th Street. 
That agreement included a 5 year renewal option with a 15% increase in the rent amount. The renewal period 
will end in July 2018.  

The attached resolution and First Amendment to the Antenna Site Lease at the South Water Tower represents 
a negotiated outcome including three optional 3 year renewal terms which require 30 days notice to be 
terminated. The first 5 year renewal term includes rent of $2,000 per month, which is increased by 15% for 
each of the two subsequent renewal terms. The total value of the first amendment over the 3 potential renewal 
terms is $83,340. 

City staff worked to negotiate the contract terms with representatives from T-Mobile and believe that the 
increased rent and other elements of the first amendment reflect a fair value in line with the market demand for 
cellular service in the immediate area.  

BUDGET IMPACT: 
Positive. The terms of this lease agreement reflect an increase of 39%, or $6,750 per year, in revenue from the 
lease terms in 2018. In addition, the lease includes subsequent rent increases of 15% in each renewal period 
which will help realign revenues with growing demand throughout the community. 

ACTION NEEDED: 
Make a motion to approve Resolution 04-18-05, approving the First Amendment to Antenna Site Lease at 
the South Water Tower.    

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 04-18-05

cc: George Brajkovic, City Manager 
Shannon Marcano, City Attorney 



1 

RESOLUTION NO.  04-18-05 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF 

THAT CERTAIN FIRST AMENDMENT TO ANTENNA SITE LEASE AT 

SOUTH WATER TOWER BETWEEN THE CITY OF TONGANOXIE, KANSAS, 

AND T-MOBILE CENTRAL, LLC.      

WHEREAS, the City of Tonganoxie and T-Mobile Central, LLC., wish to enter into that 

certain First Amendment to Antenna Site Lease at South Water Tower, attached hereto as 

Exhibit A. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE 

CITY OF TONGANOXIE, KANSAS: 

Section 1.  That the Governing Body approves and hereby authorizes the Mayor to 

execute that certain First Amendment to Antenna Site Lease at South Water Tower 

between the City of Tonganoxie and T-Mobile Central, LLC, attached hereto as Exhibit 

A.   

Section 2.  That this resolution shall become effective upon passage.  

ADOPTED by the Governing Body this 16
th

 day of April, 2018.

SIGNED by the Mayor this 16
th

 day of April, 2018.

SEAL 

______________________________ 

Jason K. Ward, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________ 

Patricia C. Hagg, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

_________________________________ 

 Shannon M. Marcano, City Attorney 



2 

 

EXHIBIT A 

First Amendment to Antenna Site Lease at South Water Tower 

 

 

 

 

 



1 
Site Number: A5D0096C   

Site Name: TMS WT  11/30/17 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO ANTENNA SITE LEASE AT SOUTH WATER TOWER 
 
This First Amendment to Antenna Site Lease at South Water Tower (the “Amendment”) is 

effective as of the date of execution by the last party to sign (the “Effective Date”) by and between The 
City of Tonganoxie, Kansas, a municipal corporation (“Lessor”) and T-Mobile Central LLC, a Delaware 
limited liability company (“Lessee”) (collectively, the “Parties”). 

 
Lessor and Lessee (or their predecessors-in-interest) entered into that certain Antenna Site Lease 

at South Water Tower dated July 13, 2007, the “Lease”) regarding Lessor’s leased area (“Premises”) 
located at 801 East 12th Street (South Water Tower), Tonganoxie, Kansas 66086 (the “Property”).   

 
 NOW, for good and valuable consideration, Lessor and Lessee agree as follows: 

 
1. The Lease is in full force and effect and neither Lessor nor Lessee is in breach under the terms 

of the Lease. 

2. At the expiration of the Lease, the Term of the Lease will automatically be extended for three 
(3) additional and successive five (5) year terms (each a "Renewal Term"), provided, that 
Lessee may elect not to renew by providing Lessor thirty (30) days’ notice prior to the 
expiration of the then current Renewal Term.   

3. At the commencement of the first Renewal Term provided for in this Lessee shall pay Lessor 
Two Thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($2,000.00) per month ("Rent") in advance, by the fifth 
day of each month.  Any Rent previously paid from and after the commencement of the first 
Renewal Term provided for in this Amendment shall be offset against the new Rent. Rent 
shall be adjusted, effective on the first day of the second Renewal Term and each subsequent 
Renewal Term, by an amount equal to fifteen percent (15%) over the Rent for the 
immediately preceding Renewal Term. 

4. Lessee and its employees and agents will have 24/7 access to the Premises. 
 
5. Lessee may complete upgrades and additions of new equipment within the leased Premises 

in compliance with required permits. 
 

6. Lessee shall have the right to transmit and receive on any and all frequencies for which 
Lessee has been granted a license by the FCC. 

 
7. Lessee may terminate the Lease by providing Lessor at least three (3) months advance 

written notice of termination due to technological, regulatory, or economic reasons. 
 

8. Lessee shall have the right to assign, or otherwise transfer the Lease, upon Lessee’s delivery 
to Lessor of prior written notice of any assignment, or transfer by Lessee.  Lessee shall be 
relieved of all liabilities and obligations and Lessor shall look solely to the assignee, or 
transferee for performance under the Lease.  Upon receipt of a written request from Lessee, 
Lessor shall promptly execute an estoppel certificate.  

 



2 
Site Number: A5D0096C   

Site Name: TMS WT  11/30/17 

9. All notices, requests, demands and other communications shall be in writing and shall be 
effective three (3) business days after deposit in the U.S. mail, certified, return receipt 
requested or upon receipt if personally delivered or sent via a nationally recognized courier 
to the addresses set forth below.  Lessor or Lessee may from time to time designate any 
other address for this purpose by providing written notice to the other party. 

 
If to Lessee: 
T-Mobile USA, Inc. 
12920 SE 38th Street 
Bellevue, WA  98006 
Attn: Lease Compliance/A5D0096C 

If to Lessor: 
City of Tonganoxie, Kansas 
Attn:  Mayor 
526 East 4th Street 
Tonganoxie, KS 66086 

 
10. Lessee and Lessor will reasonably cooperate with each other's requests to approve permit 

applications and other documents related to the Property. 
 
11. Except as expressly set forth in this Amendment, the Lease otherwise is unmodified.  To the 

extent any provision contained in this Amendment conflicts with the terms of the Lease, the 
terms and provisions of this Amendment shall control.  Each reference in the Lease to itself 
shall be deemed also to refer to this Amendment. 

 
12. This Amendment may be executed in duplicate counterparts, each of which will be deemed 

an original. Signed electronic copies of this Amendment will legally bind the Parties to the 
same extent as originals. 

 
13. Each of the Parties represents and warrants that it has the right, power, legal capacity and 

authority to enter into and perform its respective obligations under this Amendment. 
 
IN WITNESS, the Parties execute this Amendment as of the Effective Date. 
 

Lessor: 

The City of Tonganoxie, Kansas, a municipal 
corporation 

By:    

Print Name:   

Title:     

Date:   

Lessee: 

T-Mobile Central LLC, a Delaware limited liability 
company 

By:    

Print Name:    

Title:    

Date:   

   
 T-Mobile Contract Attorney 

as to form 

 

4/9/18



City of Tonganoxie www.tonganoxie.org (913) 845-2620 
  

 
Office of the City Manager 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 

DATE:  April 16, 2018 

TO:  Honorable Mayor Jason K. Ward and Members of the City Council 

FROM:   George Brajkovic, City Manager 

SUBJECT:  Authorizing Tonganoxie Days Special Event and Consumption of Alcohol 

 
DISCUSSION: 
The Tonganoxie Days 2018 planning committee desires to secure a temporary liquor license to sell alcohol 
during the Tonganoxie Days event. The area where consumption of alcohol will be permitted is planned to be 
on the blocks along Main Street, from 2nd Street to 4th Street, 3rd Street from Pleasant Street to Delaware 
Street, and Pleasant Street from 2nd Street to 3rd Street. 
 
In order to secure a temporary liquor license, the City Council must pass a resolution that authorizes the 
special event and consumption of alcohol in the proposed barricaded area listed above. To ensure that the 
committee is abiding by all state and local liquor laws, the designated area will be barricaded. To consume 
alcohol in the barricaded area, a person must purchase drink tickets and be issued a wristband. In doing so, 
the individual must show a valid form of identification. Revenue from alcohol sales will go towards offsetting 
event costs. From the proceeds of drink ticket sales, the City will be required to remit the liquor drink tax to the 
Kansas Department of Revenue following the event.  
 
Attached to this memo is the resolution for approval by the City Council. 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
None. 
 
ACTION NEEDED: 
Make a motion to approve Resolution 04-18-06, authorizing the City of Tonganoxie event planning committee 
to obtain a temporary liquor license and sell alcohol during the Tonganoxie Days event.    
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 04-18-06 
 
 
cc:  Dan Porter, Assistant City Manager 

Shannon Marcano, City Attorney    



1 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 04-18-06 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A SPECIAL EVENT KNOWN AS 

TONGANOXIE DAYS       

 

WHEREAS, the Governing Body may approve special events and exempt public areas, 

streets and sidewalks from the prohibitions concerning drinking or consuming of 

alcoholic liquor and cereal malt beverages in public areas, streets and sidewalks; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Tonganoxie Days planning committee has requested the approval of the 

Tonganoxie Days special event by the Governing Body; and  

 

WHEREAS, prior to the special event, the Tonganoxie Days planning committee shall 

secure the appropriate license from the State of Kansas to sell alcoholic liquor and cereal 

malt beverages in accordance with all applicable state laws and municipal ordinances in a 

designated area. 

 

  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE 

CITY OF TONGANOXIE, KANSAS: 

 

Section 1.  That Tonganoxie Days be approved and designated as a special event on June 

8, 9 and 10, from 11:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m. each day, and that the following streets and 

alleys shall be closed to motor vehicle traffic during the special event along Main Street 

from south of 2
nd

 Street to 4
th

 Street, 3
rd

 Street from Pleasant Street to Delaware Street, 

and Pleasant Street from 2
nd

 Street to 3
rd

 Street.   

 

Section 2.  That authorization is given for the sale and consumption of alcoholic liquor 

and cereal malt beverages, in the designated barricaded area on the blocks along Main 

Street, from 2
nd

 Street to 4
th

 Street, 3
rd

 Street, from Pleasant Street to Delaware Street, 

and Pleasant Street, from 2
nd

 Street to 3
rd

 Street, provided the Tonganoxie Days planning 

committee secures a temporary permit from the Kansas Alcohol and Beverage Control 

and complies with all state laws and ordinances, and that event attendees who are 21 

years of age and older and can provide proof of age with a valid ID may purchase, 

possess, and consume alcoholic beverages within the Designated Barricaded Area, and 

that pursuant to KSA 41-719, no alcoholic liquor may be removed from the Designated 

Barricaded Area or consumed inside vehicles while on public streets or alleys at the 

event. 

 

Section 3.  That this resolution shall become effective upon passage.   

 

 

ADOPTED by the Governing Body this 16
th

 day of April, 2018. 

   

SIGNED by the Mayor this 16
th

 day of April, 2018.   

 



2 

 

 

SEAL 

 

       ______________________________ 

                  Jason K. Ward, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________________ 

Patricia C. Hagg, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

_________________________________ 

 Shannon M. Marcano, City Attorney  

 

 

 

 

 



City of Tonganoxie www.tonganoxie.org (913) 845-2620 
  

 
 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 

DATE:  April 16, 2018 

TO:  Honorable Mayor Jason K. Ward and Members of the City Council 

FROM:   Nicole Holifield, Director of the Tonganoxie Public Library 

SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 04-18-07: Serving Alcoholic Beverages at the Tonganoxie Public Library for 
Adult Art Night which Focuses on Promoting the Arts and Education to the Tonganoxie 
Community 

 
DISCUSSION: 
The Tonganoxie Library hosts regular monthly events such as Adult Art Night Out that caters and 
provides learning opportunities to the Tonganoxie community. In addition, the library would like to add a 
component to the specific program called Adult Art Night Out that would allow the staff to serve alcoholic 
and cereal malt beverages on the library premises.  The Tonganoxie Public Library is requesting that the 
City Council approve the following special dates; May 10, June 14, July 12, August 9, September 13, 
October 11, November 8, and December 13 from 5:30 pm to 8:00 pm.  
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
None 
 
ACTION NEEDED: 
Make a motion to approve Resolution 04-18-07, establishing that alcoholic beverages is approved for the 
special dates listed above. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 04-18-07 
 
 
cc:  George Brajkovic, City Manager 

Shannon Marcano, City Attorney    



[1]  

Resolution No. 04-18-07 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A SPECIAL EVENT KNOWN AS ADULT ART NIGHT AT THE 

TONGANOXIE PUBLIC LIBRARY 

WHEREAS, the Tonganoxie Public Library is a not for profit organization promoting the arts, 

literacy and education in Tonganoxie through regular monthly art events at the Tonganoxie 

Public Library located at 303 S. Bury; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Tonganoxie Public Library hosts regular art sessions the 2
nd

 Thursday of each 

month in 2018 between the hours 5:30 to 8:00 p.m. and desires to serve alcoholic and cereal malt 
beverages on the following dates: May 10, June 14, July 12, August 9, September 13, October 
11, November 8, and December 13. 

 

WHEREAS, the Governing Body may approve special events and exempt public areas, streets 

and sidewalks from the prohibitions concerning drinking or consuming of alcoholic liquor and 

cereal malt beverages in public areas, streets and sidewalks; 

 

WHEREAS, the Tonganoxie Public Library will secure the appropriate license from the State of 

Kansas to serve alcoholic liquor and cereal malt beverages in accordance with all applicable state 

laws and municipal ordinances in the area designated by the Division of Alcoholic Beverage 

Control within the enclosed designated area during the event; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF 

TONGANOXIE, KANSAS: 
 

Section 1. That Tonganoxie Public Library monthly artist sessions are hereby designated as a 

special event and authorization is given by the Governing Body of the City of Tonganoxie for 

the consumption of alcoholic liquor and cereal malt beverages during the specified dates and 

times at 303 S Bury Street.   

 

 

 
ADOPTED by the Governing Body this 16

th
 day of April, 2018. 

   

SIGNED by the Mayor this 16
th
 day of April, 2018.   

 

 

 

 

SEAL 
 

       ______________________________ 

                  Jason K. Ward, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________________ 

Patricia C. Hagg, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

_________________________________ 

 Shannon M. Marcano, City Attorney  

 



City of Tonganoxie www.tonganoxie.org (913) 845-2620 
  

 
Office of the City Manager 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 
DATE:  April 16, 2018 
TO:  Honorable Mayor Jason K. Ward and Members of the City Council 
FROM:   Dan Porter, Assistant City Manager 

SUBJECT:  Lease Agreement with Janet Falk on behalf of Tongie Tidal Waves 

 
DISCUSSION: 
Janet Falk has submitted a request to City staff to utilize the Tonganoxie Water Park for swim team practice 
and meets held by Tongie Tidal Waves, a community swim team. For the past 9 years the group has rented 
the Water Park during the summer season, which runs from the end of May through the beginning of July. The 
nature of the rental is a series of scheduled private events that are closed to the public.  
 
Attached for the City Council’s consideration is a lease agreement, which defines the terms of private use, 
including; schedule, payments, insurance requirements, and pool rules. This year’s agreement contains 
identical terms as leases from the prior three years.  
 
Practices are anticipated to occur early Monday through Thursday mornings prior to public hours, with three 
home meets scheduled. Total estimated rental time of the Water Park is approximately 55 hours. 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
None. Revenues and expenditures for the Water Park are budgeted according to historical data and trends in 
usage. Historical data includes use of a similar nature to this lease agreement.  
 
ACTION NEEDED: 
Make a motion to approve the lease agreement with Tongie Tidal Waves for the 2018 season.    
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
2018 Lease Agreement with Tongie Tidal Waves  
 
 
cc:  George Brajkovic, City Manager 

Darren Shupe, Pool Manager    



Page 1  

 

FACILITY USE LEASE 
 
THIS LEASE is made this 16th day of April, 2018 (Effective Date), between the City of Tonganoxie 
(City), a constitutionally chartered municipal corporation in the state of Kansas, and Janet Falk (Lessee), 
whereby Lessee shall lease the Tonganoxie Water Park (Premises) under the terms and conditions 
contained in this Lease. 
 
In consideration of the covenants and agreements hereinafter set forth, it is hereby agreed as follows: 
 

PART I 
SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
Sec. 1 Leased Space 

The City grants to Lessee permission to use the Premises upon the terms and conditions 
specified in this Lease and will otherwise close the Premises to the public.  “Premises” is 
further defined as the Tonganoxie Water Park, which is bounded by 2nd Street on the 
north, Main Street on the west, Pleasant Street on the east, and 3rd Street on the south, 
including the buildings, swimming pool, furnishings, parking spaces, green spaces, and 
appurtenances. 

 
Sec. 2 Lease Schedule 

The event of the Lessee (Event) under the terms of this Lease on the Premises shall only 
take place upon the dates and specified times as defined in Addendum A.   

 
Sec. 3 Payment 

A. The Lessee agrees to pay as and for rental of the Premises the rate(s) as defined 
in Addendum A.  Lessee shall pay for any City staff time that is required beyond 
the time limits of this Lease at a rate of time and one half per half-hour increment 
due to any cause or act by Lessee or Lessee’s guests. 

B. Rental includes the time that City staff open the Premises for the leased purposes 
until the Event is completed. 

C. A refundable cleaning and damage deposit of $100.00 will be required upon 
execution of this Lease. 

D. Lessee will make payments in accordance with the terms of Addendum A. 

E. At 12:01 AM seven days prior to the first date of occupancy under the terms of 
this Lease, Lessee shall have no right to any refund of rent payments due to 
cancellation by Lessee.  However, the City may refund the cleaning and damage 
deposit to the extent that Lessee or Lessee’s guests made no use of the Premises. 

 
Sec. 4  Cancellation 

Lessee agrees and understands that the City has the right to cancel and terminate 
this Lease if the payment schedule or all other obligations of Lessee hereunder are 
not strictly performed. In the event of any cancellation or termination by the City 
or Lessee, the City has the right to retain the non-refundable deposit, not as 
liquidated damages but as payment for administrative costs associated with 
negotiation and preparation of this Lease.  Otherwise, the deposit shall be applied 
against funds due the City under this Lease. Should Lessee cancel or fail to hold 
scheduled event, or if Lessee fails to make the necessary payments as provided 



Page 2  

 

herein, without prior written approval from the City Manager, all payments 
previously received from  Lessee as a deposit or rental shall become the property of 
the Citv and shall not be refunded or transferred. 

 
Sec. 5  Notices 

All notices required by this Lease shall be in writing sent by regular U.S. mail, postage 
prepaid or commercial overnight courier to the following: 

 
To City: 

  Pool Manager 
  P.O. Box 326 

Tonganoxie, Kansas 66086 
  Phone:   (913) 845-2620  Facsimile:   (913) 845-9760 
 
 To Lessee: 

Janet Falk 
Tonganoxie Tidal Waves 
11263 230th Street 
Linwood, Kansas 66052 
Phone:  (913) 369-5208 
tongieswim@gmail.com 

 
All notices are effective on the date mailed or deposited with courier. 

 
Sec. 5  Merger 

This Lease consists of Part I, Special Terms and Conditions and any Attachments and any 
documents incorporated by reference; and Part II, Standard Terms and Conditions.  This 
Lease, including any Attachments and incorporated documents, constitutes the entire 
Lease between the City and Lessee with respect to this subject matter. 

 
Sec. 6  Conflict between Lease Parts 

In the event of any conflict or ambiguity between the Special Terms and Conditions of 
Part I and the Standard Terms and Conditions of Part II of this Lease, Part I will be 
controlling. 

 
Sec. 7  Term of Lease 

This Lease shall begin on the Effective Date and shall terminate at the end of the day July 
31, 2018.  The term of this Lease may be extended by mutual, written consent of the City 
and Lessee for a time not to exceed the 2018 season. 

 
Sec. 8  Responsibilities of City   

A. The City will provide sufficient staff, as determined by the Pool Manager or Pool 
Manager’s superior, to ensure the safety of guests of the Event. 

B. The City will provide for proper and adequate functionality of the Premises as is 
customary for general public use, including, but not limited to, water chemistry, 
showers and restrooms, utilities, and secure access. 

 

  

mailto:tongieswim@gmail.com


Page 3  

 

Sec. 9  Attorney Services Certification 
Lessee certifies that at the time of the issuance of the Lease, either in an individual or 
firm capacity, Lessee does not represent any part in litigation against the City, exclusive 
of representation in municipal court, exclusive of those attorneys employed by a not-for-
profit legal services corporation and exclusive of where the City is named as a nominal 
part, where the litigation has been filed with the Lease of the City and the party 
represented by the attorney, or where the council has otherwise waived this requirement. 

 
PART II 

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
Sec. 1.  Indemnification:  Definitions 
A.  For purposes of this Section 1 only, the following terms shall have the meanings listed: 

i. Claims means all claims, damages, liability, losses, costs and expenses, court costs and 
reasonable attorneys' fees, including attorneys’ fees incurred by the City in the enforcement of 
this indemnity obligation. 

ii. Lessee's Agents means Lessee's officers, employees, sub-consultants, subLessees, successors, 
assigns, invitees, and other agents. 

iii. City means City of Tonganoxie and its agents, officials, officers and employees. 

B.  Lessee's obligations under this Paragraph with respect to indemnification for acts or omissions, 
including negligence, of the City, shall be limited to the coverage and limits of insurance that Lessee is 
required to procure and maintain under this Lease.  Lessee affirms that it has had the opportunity to 
recover the costs of the liability insurance required in this Lease in its contract price. 

C.  Lessee shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City from and against all claims arising out of 
or resulting from all acts or omissions in connection with this Lease caused in whole or in part by Lessee 
or Lessee's Agents, regardless of whether or not caused in part by any act or omission, including 
negligence, of the City.  Lessee is not obligated under this Section to indemnify the City for the sole 
negligence of the City. 

D.  Nothing in this section shall apply to indemnification for professional negligence which is specified in 
a separate provision of this Lease. 
 
Sec. 2.  Independent Agency.  
Lessee is an independent agent and is not the City’s agent.  Lessee has no authority to take any action or 
execute any documents on behalf of the City. 

Sec. 3.  Insurance.  
A. Unless otherwise waived by the City in writing, Lessee shall procure and maintain in effect 
throughout the duration of this Lease insurance coverage not less than the types and amounts specified in 
this section.  In the event that additional insurance, not specified herein, is required during the term of this 
Lease, Lessee shall supply such insurance at the City’s cost.  Policies containing a Self-Insured Retention 
are unacceptable to the City. 

1. Commercial General Liability Insurance: with limits of $1,000,000 per occurrence and 
$1,000,000 aggregate, written on an “occurrence” basis.  The policy shall be written or endorsed to 
include the following provisions: 

 a. Severability of Interests Coverage applying to Additional Insureds 



Page 4  

 

b. Per Project Aggregate Liability Limit or, where not available, the aggregate limit shall be 
$1,000,000 

 c. No Contractual Liability Limitation Endorsement 
 d. Additional Insured Endorsement, ISO form CG20 10, or its equivalent. 

2. If applicable, Workers’ Compensation Insurance, as required by statute, including Employers 
Liability with limits of: 

 Workers’ Compensation Statutory Employers Liability $100,000 accident with limits of:  
   $500,000 disease-policy limit 

$100,000 disease-each employee 

  3. If applicable, Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance: with a limit of $1,000,000 per 
occurrence, covering owned, hired, and non-owned automobiles.  Coverage provided shall be on an “any 
auto” basis and written on an “occurrence” basis.  This insurance will be written on a Commercial 
Business Auto form, or acceptable equivalent, and will protect against claims arising out of the operation 
of motor vehicles, as to acts done in connection with the Lease, by Lessee. 

4. If applicable, Professional Liability Insurance with limits per claim and annual aggregate of 
$1,000,000. 

A. The policies listed above may not be canceled until after thirty (30) days written notice of 
cancellation to the City, ten (10) days in the event of nonpayment of premium.  The Commercial General 
and Automobile Liability Insurance specified above shall provide that the City and its agencies, officials, 
officers, and employees, while acting within the scope of their authority, will be named as additional 
insureds for the services performed under this Lease.  Lessee shall provide to the City at execution of this 
Lease a certificate of insurance showing all required endorsements and additional insureds.   

B. All insurance coverage must be written by companies that have an A.M. Best’s rating of “B+V” or 
better, and are licensed or approved by the State of Kansas to do business in Kansas. 

C. Regardless of any approval by the City, liability is the responsibility of Lessee and should maintain 
the required insurance coverage in force at all times; its failure to do so will not relieve it of any 
contractual obligation or responsibility.  In the event of Lessee’s failure to maintain the required insurance 
in effect, the City may order Lessee to immediately stop work, and upon ten (10) days notice and an 
opportunity to cure, may pursue its remedies for breach of this Lease as provided for herein and by law. 

Sec. 4.  Governing Law.   
This Lease shall be construed and governed in accordance with the law of the State of Kansas.  The 
parties submit to the jurisdiction of the courts of Leavenworth County and the State of Kansas and waive 
venue. 
 
Sec. 5.   Compliance with Laws.  
Lessee shall comply with all federal, state and local laws, ordinances and regulations applicable to the 
work and this Lease. 
 
Sec. 6.  Default and Remedies.   
If Lessee shall be in default or breach of any provision of this Lease, the City may terminate this contract, 
suspend the City’s performance, withhold payment or invoke any other legal or equitable remedy after 
giving Lessee notice and opportunity to correct such default or breach. 
 
Sec. 7. Waiver.  
 Waiver by the City of any term, covenant, or condition hereof shall not operate as a waiver of any 
subsequent breach of the same or of any other term, covenant or condition.  No term, covenant, or 
condition of this Lease can be waived except by written consent of the City, and forbearance or 



Page 5  

 

indulgence by the City in any regard whatsoever shall not constitute a waiver of same to be performed by 
Lessee to which the same may apply and, until complete performance by Lessee of the term, covenant or 
condition, the City shall be entitled to invoke any remedy available to it under this Lease or by law 
despite any such forbearance or indulgence. 
 
Sec. 8.  Modification.   
Unless stated otherwise in this Lease, no provision of this Lease may be waived, modified or amended 
except in writing signed by the City. 
 
Sec. 9. Headings; Construction of Lease.  
The headings of each section of this Lease are for reference only.  Unless the context of this Lease clearly 
requires otherwise, all terms and words used herein, regardless of the number and gender in which used, 
shall be construed to include any other number, singular or plural, or any other gender, masculine, 
feminine or neuter, the same as if such words had been fully and properly written in that number or 
gender. 
 
Sec. 10. Severability of Provisions.  
Except as specifically provided in this Lease, all of the provisions of this Lease shall be severable.  In the 
event that any provision of this Lease is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional 
or unlawful, the remaining provisions of this Lease shall be valid unless the court finds that the valid 
provisions of this Lease are so essentially and inseparably connected with and so dependent upon the 
invalid provision(s) that it cannot be presumed that the parties to this Lease could have included the valid 
provisions without the invalid provision(s); or unless the court finds that the valid provisions, standing 
alone, are incapable of being performed in accordance with the intentions of the parties. 
 
Sec. 11.  Audit. 
A. The City Manager or designee shall have the right to audit this Lease and all books, documents and 
records relating thereto. 

B. Lessee shall maintain all its books, documents and records relating to this Lease during the contract 
period and for three (3) years after the date of final payment. 

C.  The books, documents and records of Lessee in connection with this Lease shall be made available to 
the City Manager or designee within ten (10) days after the written request is made. 
 
Sec. 12.  Assignability or Subcontracting 
Lessee shall not subcontract, assign or transfer any part or all of Lessee’s obligations or interests without 
the City’s prior approval.  If Lessee shall subcontract, assign, or transfer any part of Lessee’s interests or 
obligations under this Lease without the prior approval of the City, it shall constitute a material breach of 
this Lease. 
 
Sec.  13. Conflicts of Interest.   
Lessee certifies that no officer or employee of the City has, or will have, a direct or indirect financial or 
personal interest in this Lease, and that no officer or employee of the City, or member of such officer’s or 
employee’s immediate family, either has negotiated, or has or will have an arrangement, concerning 
employment to perform services on behalf of Lessee in this Lease. 
 
  



Page 6  

 

THIS LEASE CONTAINS INDEMNIFICATION PROVISIONS 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Lessee and the City have caused this Facility Use Lease to be duly executed 
as set forth below. 

Lessee 
I hereby certify that I have authority to execute 
this document  
 
By:  ______________________________  
 
Printed: ______________________________ 
 
Title:  ______________________________ 
 
 

City of Tonganoxie, Kansas  
a constitutionally chartered municipal corporation 
 
 
 
By: ________________________________ 

   Darren Shupe 
Title:  Water Park Manager 

 
 
 

  

 
 



Page i  

 

Addendum A 
 
Sect. 1  Usage Schedule  
Lessee is the organizer and responsible party for a private community swim team for children, Tongie 
Tidal Waves. The Lessee will use the Premises up to 55 hours according to the following year 2018 
schedule:  
 
• 2018 Proposed Schedule: ($10.00 per practice hour and $30.00 per swim meet hour) 
 

Total 2018 Fees =  $850.00 
 
Sect. 2  Fee Rate 
The fee for reserving the Premises will be $10 per hour for swim practice and $30 per hour for swim 
meets for a total fee of $850. Lessee is not required to pay standard rental rates or for the costs of City 
staff time during the scheduled times as described in Section 1 herein.  
 
Sect. 3  Payment Schedule 
One half of the total fee due, or $425, shall be paid to the City, in a form acceptable to the City, no later 
than the close of business May 26, 2017. The balance shall be paid no later than July 31, 2017. The City 
will send the payment invoice pursuant to Part 1, Section 5 of this Lease herein.  
 
Sect. 4  Rain Provision 



Page ii  

 

If the City Manager or Pool Manager determines that inclement weather or an act of God would unduly 
hinder or pose unreasonable risk to holding the Event or part of the Event, the City will reduce the total 
amount of rent due by Lessee in applicable hourly increments for such determined time. However, if the 
Lessee schedules, with City approval, an alternate day and time in lieu of the missed time, the Lessee will 
not be entitled to reduced rent.  
 
If the Lessee believes that this Rain Provision applies to the Event, the Lessee must call by telephone or e-
mail, with reasonable expediency, the Pool Manager (dshupe@tonganoxie.org) and either the Assistant 
City Manager (dporter@tonganoxie.org) or the City Manager (gbrajkovic@tonganoxie.org) to request a 
cancellation pursuant to Section 4 herein. The City will make the final determination of the applicability 
of this Rain Provision and respond to Lessee as promptly practicable.  
 
Sect. 5  Water Park Rules 

A. The following are prohibited on the Premises: 
1. Fighting 
2. Stealing 
3. Inappropriate language  
4. Skate boarding 
5. Throwing people into the pool 
6. Disobeying lifeguards 
7. Flotation devices in the deep end 

8. “Chicken” fighting   
9. Dunking 
10. Over sized rafts    
11. Running on the pool deck  
12. Drinking alcoholic beverages 
13. Smoking 

 
B. The following are required on the Premises: 

1. Following all diving rules   
2. Following all slide rules  
3. Respect for all staff and visitors  

 

mailto:dshupe@tonganoxie.org


City of Tonganoxie www.tonganoxie.org (913) 845-2620 
  

 
Office of the City Manager 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 

DATE:  April 16, 2018 

TO:  Honorable Mayor Jason K. Ward and Members of the City Council 

FROM:   George Brajkovic, City Manager 

SUBJECT:  Request for award of bid and approval to authorize agreement for repairs to City Hall roof  

 
DISCUSSION: 
Precipitation events occurring in the past 8-10 months resulted in conditions in the City Hall building located at 
526 E 4th Street that indicated issues with the waterproofing of the roof on the building. Leaks in at least three 
specific areas of the building resulted in damage to ceiling tiles and deterioration of the metal decking 
structures located directly underneath the roof seal. After gathering information and providing City Council with 
periodic updates over the past several months, City staff request approval to accept the low bid received for 
repairs and the replacement of several elements of the City Hall roof. These repairs include removal of the 
existing built up roof system, installation of a new fully-adhered roof system suited for the building, and the 
replacement of any deteriorated metal decking materials required due to deterioration linked to moist 
conditions.   
 
The tabulation of the 4 bids collected for performance of these services is listed below.  Each bid amount 
reflects an increase from the attached formal bid documents corresponding to the projected replacement of 
200 square feet of deteriorated metal decking located beneath the roof. The full extent of this material in the 
condition to require replacement is not able to be known until the roof is removed, but this measurement 
reflects the anticipated requirements of the level of repair based on inspection during the walk through process.  
 
2018 Repairs to City Hall Roof_______________ 
Midwest Coating Inc. -   $28,845.93 
Christian Brothers Roofing LLC - $30,129.60 
Redhammer Roof Group LLC -  $33,855.32 
Delta Commercial Roofing -   $37,740.00 
 
Based on the bids and consideration of the project requirements, staff recommends approval of the low bid 
received for the repairs to the City Hall roof with Midwest Coating Inc. At this time it is anticipated that the work 
could commence in May 2018 and be completed in June 2018.    
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
While the expense is unanticipated and of an urgent nature, the impact of the expense on the 2018 budget is 
minimal due to bid outcomes and the financial impact of decisions authorized by the City Council earlier in 
2018. The expenditure will be made out of the General Fund contractual services budget and is anticipated to 
be approximately offset by the portion of the proceeds (85%) from the sale of the Former City Garage Facility 
not set aside for fund balance policy requirements.   
 
ACTION(S) NEEDED: 
Make a motion to approve execution of an agreement with Midwest Coating Inc. to repair the City Hall roof and 
replace any necessary materials for an amount not to exceed $28,845.93.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
City Hall Roof Repair Quotes (4) 
Midwest Coating Inc. Insurance & Certification Documents 
Midwest Coating Inc. draft contract agreement 
 



City of Tonganoxie www.tonganoxie.org (913) 845-2620 
  

cc:  Dan Porter, Assistant City Manager 
Kent Heskett, Public Works Director 



















INSR ADDL SUBR
LTR INSR WVD

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

PRODUCER CONTACT
NAME:

FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER A :

INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF POLICY EXP

TYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

Y / N

N / A
(Mandatory in NH)

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

EACH OCCURRENCE $
DAMAGE TO RENTED

$PREMISES (Ea occurrence)CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GENERAL AGGREGATE $GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $

$

PRO-

OTHER:

LOCJECT

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
$(Ea accident)

BODILY INJURY (Per person) $ANY AUTO
ALL OWNED SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $
AUTOS AUTOS

HIRED AUTOS
NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE $
AUTOS (Per accident)

$

OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $

CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

DED RETENTION $ $
PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

POLICY

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE    EXPIRATION   DATE    THEREOF,    NOTICE   WILL   BE   DELIVERED   IN
ACCORDANCE   WITH   THE   POLICY   PROVISIONS.

THIS  IS  TO  CERTIFY  THAT  THE  POLICIES  OF  INSURANCE  LISTED  BELOW  HAVE BEEN ISSUED  TO THE  INSURED  NAMED ABOVE  FOR THE  POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.   NOTWITHSTANDING  ANY   REQUIREMENT,  TERM  OR  CONDITION OF  ANY  CONTRACT OR  OTHER  DOCUMENT  WITH  RESPECT  TO  WHICH  THIS
CERTIFICATE  MAY  BE  ISSUED  OR  MAY  PERTAIN,   THE  INSURANCE  AFFORDED  BY  THE  POLICIES  DESCRIBED  HEREIN  IS  SUBJECT  TO  ALL  THE  TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS  AND  CONDITIONS  OF  SUCH  POLICIES.   LIMITS  SHOWN  MAY  HAVE  BEEN  REDUCED  BY  PAID  CLAIMS.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORDACORD 25 (2014/01)

ACORDTM CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 9/27/2017

Holmes Murphy-Kansas City
1828 Walnut Street Suite 701
Property Casualty/MM-KC
Kansas City, MO  64108

Darla Mose CRM CIC CISR
816 857-7816

dmose@holmesmurphy.com

Midwest Coating, Inc.
3830 NW 16th St
Topeka, KS  66618

National Fire Ins Co of Hartfrd
The Continental Insurance Co
Valley Forge Insurance Company
Transportation Insurance Co

20478
35289
20508
20494

A X
X

X PD Ded:2,000

X

6043481168 10/01/2017 10/01/2018 1,000,000
100,000
15,000
1,000,000
2,000,000
2,000,000

D
X

X X

6043481123 10/01/2017 10/01/2018 1,000,000

B X X

X 10,000

6043481266 10/01/2017 10/01/2018 6,000,000
6,000,000

C

N

6043481252 10/01/2017 10/01/2018 X
1,000,000

1,000,000
1,000,000

D
D

Leased/Rntd Equip
Installation Fltr

6043597633
6043597633

10/01/2017
10/01/2017

10/01/2018
10/01/2018

$50,000/25,000 per item
$300,000
$1,000 deductible

 

Sample Certificate
  

1 of 1
#S308694/M308641

MIDCOAPC1Client#: 40371

MOSD1
1 of 1

#S308694/M308641




S
T

A
T

E
 O

F
 K

A
N

S
A

S
 

R
E

G
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

 C
E

R
T

IF
IC

A
T

E
 

T
O

 A
L

L
 T

O
 W

H
O

M
 T

H
E

S
E

 P
R

E
S

E
N

T
S

 S
H

A
L

L
 C

O
M

E
, G

R
E

E
T

IN
G

S
: 

K
N

O
W

 Y
E

, T
H

A
T

 I
, D

E
R

E
K

 S
C

H
M

ID
T

, A
T

T
O

R
N

E
Y

 G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 O

F 
T

H
E

 S
T

A
T

E
 O

F 
K

A
N

SA
S,

 
do

 h
er

eb
y 

ce
rt

if
y 

th
at

 

M
ID

W
E

ST
 C

O
A

T
IN

G
, I

N
C

. 
13

-1
15

00
9 

IS
 A

 R
E

G
IS

T
E

R
E

D
 R

O
O

F
IN

G
 C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R
, A

S 
P

R
E

SC
R

IB
E

D
 I

N
 

K
A

N
SA

S 
R

O
O

F
IN

G
 R

E
G

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

 
T

H
IS

 C
E

R
T

IF
IC

A
T

E
 I

S 
V

A
L

ID
 F

R
O

M
 J

U
L

Y
 1

1)  
20

17
, T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 J
U

N
E

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

IN
 T

E
S

T
IM

O
N

Y
 W

H
E

R
E

O
F

, I
 h

av
e 

he
re

un
to

 s
ub

sc
ri

be
d 

m
y 

na
m

e 
th

is
 2

9t
h 

da
y 

of
 M

ar
ch

, A
D

 2
01

7 

r 
5C

.S
L

f 
A

T
T

O
R

N
E

Y
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 D
E

R
E

K
 S

C
H

M
ID

T
 



STATE OF KANSAS 

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 
CONSUMER PROTECTION AND ANTITRUST DIVISION 

DEREK SCHM DT 	 MEMORIAL HALL 

ATTORNEY GENERAL 	 120 SW 10TH AVE., 2ND FLOOR 

TOPEKA, KS 66612-1597 

(785) 296-3751 • FAX (785) 291-3699 

TOLL FREE IN KANSAS (800) 432-2310 

WWW.INYOURCORNERKANSAS.ORG  

March 29, 2017 

Mr. Randall D. Morris 
Midwest Coating, Inc. 
3830 NW 16th Street 
Topeka, KS 66618 

Re: 	Roofing Certificate of Registration 

Mr. Mofris: 

Thank 	for filing your application for registration pursuant to the Kansas roofing registration 
act. Enlosed with this letter please find your 2017 Certificate of Registration No. 13-115009. 

Your Crtificate of Registration may not be shared or used by any other individual or business, 
except i4iat business entities acting as one unit may be granted a single registration certificate. 
Your reistration number shall be submitted when applying for any permit issued by the state, or 
any of is subdivisions, for commercial or residential roofing services or projects, if a permit is 
required by such authority. Your registration number shall be written on each permit issued. 

Your registration number shall be displayed on each commercial vehicle used for roofing 
services 

;oofmg
nd  upon every business sign, card, correspondence, and contract used to solicit and 

conduct 	services in this state as stated per the Kansas Roofing Registration Act. 

This Ceitificate of Registration allows you/your company to engage in the roofing business 
within Kansas from July 1, 2017, through June 30, 2018, pursuant to the limitations listed in the 
Kansas roofing registration act. 

If you should have any questions, please contact the Kansas Attorney General's Office at 
(785) 296-3751. 

Sincerely, 

Le 

Kyle Strathman 
Investigator 
Roofing Registration Unit 

Enclosu 


















	02_Draft City Council Minutes_2018-04-02.pdf
	I.  Pledge of Allegiance
	II.  Approval of Minutes – Regular Meeting dated March 19, 2018 and special meeting dated March 24, 2018
	III.  Approval of Consent Agenda
	a) Review Bill Payments

	IV.  Open Agenda
	V.  Old Business
	a) Request for authorization to end participation in Downtown Revolving Loan Program Grant with the Kansas Department of Commerce

	VI.  New Business
	a) Resolution 04-18-01: Authorizing Engagement Letter with Local Law, LLC
	b) Resolution 04-18-02: Appointing Municipal Court Judge and City Attorney
	c) Resolution  04-18-03: Approving Real Estate Contract of Sale of Former City Garage Facility
	d) Ordinance 1436: Voluntary Annexation of Real Property
	e) City Council Vacancy Applications Review
	f) City Manager Agenda
	g) City Attorney Agenda
	h) Mayor Agenda
	1. Executive session for the preliminary discussion of the acquisition of real property

	i) Mayor Pro Tem Agenda
	j) City Council Agenda

	VII.  Information and Communications (No Action Required)
	VIII.  Adjourn

	06f_Attachments_Tonganoxie Water Park Lease Agreement_2018.pdf
	Sec. 3.  Insurance.
	A. Unless otherwise waived by the City in writing, Lessee shall procure and maintain in effect throughout the duration of this Lease insurance coverage not less than the types and amounts specified in this section.  In the event that additional insura...
	1. Commercial General Liability Insurance: with limits of $1,000,000 per occurrence and $1,000,000 aggregate, written on an “occurrence” basis.  The policy shall be written or endorsed to include the following provisions:
	a. Severability of Interests Coverage applying to Additional Insureds
	b. Per Project Aggregate Liability Limit or, where not available, the aggregate limit shall be $1,000,000
	c. No Contractual Liability Limitation Endorsement
	d. Additional Insured Endorsement, ISO form CG20 10, or its equivalent.

	2. If applicable, Workers’ Compensation Insurance, as required by statute, including Employers Liability with limits of:
	3. If applicable, Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance: with a limit of $1,000,000 per occurrence, covering owned, hired, and non-owned automobiles.  Coverage provided shall be on an “any auto” basis and written on an “occurrence” basis.  This ...
	4. If applicable, Professional Liability Insurance with limits per claim and annual aggregate of $1,000,000.

	A. The policies listed above may not be canceled until after thirty (30) days written notice of cancellation to the City, ten (10) days in the event of nonpayment of premium.  The Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance specified above s...
	B. All insurance coverage must be written by companies that have an A.M. Best’s rating of “B+V” or better, and are licensed or approved by the State of Kansas to do business in Kansas.
	C. Regardless of any approval by the City, liability is the responsibility of Lessee and should maintain the required insurance coverage in force at all times; its failure to do so will not relieve it of any contractual obligation or responsibility.  ...

	Sec. 4.  Governing Law.
	This Lease shall be construed and governed in accordance with the law of the State of Kansas.  The parties submit to the jurisdiction of the courts of Leavenworth County and the State of Kansas and waive venue.
	18TSec. 6.  Default and Remedies18T.
	If Lessee shall be in default or breach of any provision of this Lease, the City may terminate this contract, suspend the City’s performance, withhold payment or invoke any other legal or equitable remedy after giving Lessee notice and opportunity to ...
	Sec. 7. Waiver.
	Waiver by the City of any term, covenant, or condition hereof shall not operate as a waiver of any subsequent breach of the same or of any other term, covenant or condition.  No term, covenant, or condition of this Lease can be waived except by writt...
	Sec. 8.  Modification.
	Unless stated otherwise in this Lease, no provision of this Lease may be waived, modified or amended except in writing signed by the City.
	Sec. 9. Headings; Construction of Lease.
	The headings of each section of this Lease are for reference only.  Unless the context of this Lease clearly requires otherwise, all terms and words used herein, regardless of the number and gender in which used, shall be construed to include any othe...
	Sec. 10. Severability of Provisions.
	Except as specifically provided in this Lease, all of the provisions of this Lease shall be severable.  In the event that any provision of this Lease is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or unlawful, the remaining provi...
	Sec. 11.  Audit.
	A. The City Manager or designee shall have the right to audit this Lease and all books, documents and records relating thereto.
	B. Lessee shall maintain all its books, documents and records relating to this Lease during the contract period and for three (3) years after the date of final payment.
	C.  The books, documents and records of Lessee in connection with this Lease shall be made available to the City Manager or designee within ten (10) days after the written request is made.

	Sec. 12.  Assignability or Subcontracting
	Lessee shall not subcontract, assign or transfer any part or all of Lessee’s obligations or interests without the City’s prior approval.  If Lessee shall subcontract, assign, or transfer any part of Lessee’s interests or obligations under this Lease w...




